
Approved Minutes 

1/13/2015 

 

The City of New York Mills is an equal opportunity provider and employer. 

 

NEW YORK MILLS CITY COUNCIL 

PUBLIC HEARING 

November 10, 2014 

6:30 P.M. 

 

CALL TO ORDER AND DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM 
The Public Hearing of the New York Mills City Council was called to order at 6:30 p.m. in the City 

Council Chambers of the City Hall Building at 28 Centennial 84 Dr., New York Mills, Minnesota, all 

members of the Council having been notified of the Hearing. 

 

Members Present: Gerber, Maki, Roder and Hoaby 

 

Members Absent: None 

 

Staff Present: Darla Berry, Cheri Kopveiler, 

 

Guests Present: Jon Pratt of Apex Engineering 

 

Residents/Others Present: Dean Simpson, Nathan Seip, Jerry Larson, Ken Hendrickx, Josie 

Hendrickx, Larry Grieger 

 

Call to Order The Hearing was called to order at 6:30 p.m.   

 

Introduction 
 

Mayor Gerber welcomed all attendees to the Public Hearing.  She noted that the hearing was being held 

according to Chapter 429 of the Minnesota State Statutes.  The purpose is to provide notifications to the 

public regarding the proposed improvements, improvement schedules, and assessment procedures.  She 

noted that APEX engineer Jon Pratt would be making a presentation.  She stated that after the 

presentation, attendees could ask questions.  Before asking a question, she asked that the speaker should 

state their name and address first.  She then asked Jon Pratt to begin his presentation. 

 

Presentation 
 

This hearing is being held concerning the improvements proposed pursuant to Chapter 429 of Minnesota 

State Statutes governing assessments.  We are looking for input, concerns, and questions on the proposed 

2015 Miller Street and Drainage improvements, estimated costs, financing and assessments, and 

scheduling.  Then we will open it up for questions and comments.   

 

Jon Pratt referred to his power point presentation.  He noted that the project area includes about 800 linear 

feet from Broadway west to about where the Car Wash is situated.  West of that point there is no reason to 

make any changes as there is no drainage issue.  However, all the landowners along Miller Street, 

including those beyond the project area, were notified as it will affect them during the construction phase.  

There are known problems with drainage in the area, and the past summer season was no exception.  

Drainage is already an issue, and when we have rainfalls that are fast and furious such as many this past 

summer there are no easy drainage routes.  The drainage ditch along highway 10 cannot handle this as it 

has little elevation change and the drainage is very slow.  Also this ditch has vegetative growth in it.  The 

sewer and water mains along the project area are fine for the most part.  There is a small section of cast 

iron water main that will be replaced.  

 



Approved Minutes 

1/13/2015 

 

The City of New York Mills is an equal opportunity provider and employer. 

 

The street width is undefined and ranges from 32’ to 40’ wide, and was originally constructed in the 

1970s.   

 

Total frontage is double that of the project length as there are adjacent properties along both sides, so the 

project length of 800’ is doubled to 1600’ when per foot frontage assessments are calculated.   

 

Pratt discussed the economies of scale that will be realized by combining this Miller Street Drainage 

project into the larger planned 2015 utility/street rehabilitation project that the City is also planning for 

2015.  By doing these similar work projects together, we will get one larger project which is more 

attractive to the bidders.  We should get better bids in as a results of the economies of scale this 

companion / combined project offers.   

 

Jon Pratt wrapped up his general comments once he had gone through his overheads.  Then he opened it 

up for the questions and answers those in attendance may have.   

 

Mayor Gerber noted that those with questions would all get a chance to be heard.  She asked that they 

note their name.  

 

Dean Simpson of Dean’s Grocery asked whether the City had spoken to the folks at Sharehouse.  They 

will have about 1/3 of the project area given their presence across a huge distance on the south side of 

Miller Street.   

 

Jon Pratt explained that he had met with representatives of Sharehouse already.  He indicated though that 

he had not seen their blueprints of their expansion plans.   

 

Dean Simpson shared that in 1976 this area was developed.  He had bought a good deal of it and pieced 

things together.  He noted that the rains this past summer were extraordinary.  He expressed concern not 

only with the assessments that he and other property owners would bear, but more so he was concerned 

with the City itself being saddled with over $500,000 in expense for this and how that debt would affect 

the property taxes all over town.  As far as controlling access for his customers in and out of his business 

with curbs and restricted driveways, he felt it would only be a concern should it be restricted so much that 

trucks  would not be able to maneuver and get in and out.  He noted that many comment on how hard it is 

at times to get in and out of Casey’s.   

 

Jon Pratt commented that he too was concerned with these business access issues and the project would 

be designed to ensure that access was acceptable.   

 

Dean Simpson questioned whether catch basins alone might be sufficient, to scale back the project and 

install catch basins only in the area where the ditch comes in, this may cut the price in half. 

 

Jon Pratt conceded that this might work, and then the street could be left alone.  However, he noted that 

there are many problems with the current street, and there is a great deal of traffic in the area.   

 

Josh Hoaby noted that having all that water sitting there does a good deal of street damage, leading to 

more repairs and more maintenance costs.   

 

Ken Hendrickx expressed concerned that installation of curb and gutters would restrict access to his 

business too much.   

 

Jon Pratt reiterated that during the design phase they would be giving a close look at accessibility and to 

ensure that things are not too restricted in that regard.   



Approved Minutes 

1/13/2015 

 

The City of New York Mills is an equal opportunity provider and employer. 

 

Ken Hendrickx noted that sidewalks could present issues.  Sharehouse is also tight for space, so a 

sidewalk will take more right of way and leave less space for the businesses for parking.   

 

Jon Pratt noted that there wouldn’t necessarily be a sidewalk across the Sharehouse area, but it is 

problematic as they have their own sidewalk.  We cannot route public pedestrians onto sidewalks on 

private property.   

 

Dean Simpson noted that the blueprints he viewed for the Sharehouse expansion shows quite a large 

addition.  He asked if the sidewalk might go the entire length of Miller Street.   

 

Josh Hoaby commented that there is a Safe Routes to School group that is discussing bike lanes along 

Miller Street.   

 

Marsha Maki added that there could be some funding for the Safe Routes to School program.   

 

Dean Simpson again discussed the cost of the project, and in particular the City’s significant share and 

how that would affect the levy in town.  He noted that it is a typical catch 22 situation, where something 

needs to be done but no one wants to see higher taxes.   

 

Jon Pratt noted that if the bids come in very high the City can reject all bids.  The estimates used for this 

project are quite high, given the bid prices seen during the last bidding rounds.  The estimate at $155 per 

foot is very high for a street assessment.  This project will need a good deal of soil correction, and then 

dewatering will be needed.  These factors drive up the costs.   

 

Josh Hoaby noted that residential properties are being hit higher than these businesses for the 

improvements being proposed in other areas.   

 

Josie Hendrickx asked what the options are in the interim, with these high costs we are seeing.   

 

Jon Pratt noted that a cleaning of the ditch could be done, but this won’t provide much relief.  

 

Roger Salo commented that the culvert under highway 10 is still about 2/3 full from the overflow from the 

north side of the highway. 

 

Jon Pratt again noted that the City can reject all bids if this comes in too high.  The City is bundling this 

Miller Street drainage project with other utility and street rehabilitation projects slated for other locations 

in the City.  This bundling into one larger project makes it more attractive to potential bidders, which may 

help us get some decent bids.   

 

Marsha Maki commented that this road is one that is heavily used, many vehicles drive on it.  It gives 

people that are from elsewhere a general impression of our town.  The improvements proposed will 

improve the impression those people get.  It will provide a benefit to the community. 

 

Ken Hendrickx commented that he would like more meetings like this one to keep the business owners 

and others apprised of the status of this project as it moves forward. 

 

Jerry Larson asked if the improvements can be stopped east of his property, as he feels the drainage issues 

do not extend as far west as the car wash.   

 

Jon Pratt handed out business cards.   



Approved Minutes 

1/13/2015 

 

The City of New York Mills is an equal opportunity provider and employer. 

 

Gerber asked if there were any other questions or comments?   Hearing none, she thanked those in 

attendance for attending the meeting and expressing their opinions.  She then announced that the public 

hearing was closed, again thanking those present.    

 

The Public Hearing concluded at 7:38 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted by, 

 

 

 

___________________________ 

Darla Berry 

City Clerk 

  

 

 
 

 


